
 
MORIN BUILDING 

8570 EXECUTIVE PARK AVENUE  
FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 22031 

 
 

March 12, 2021 
 
To:  All Prospective Offerors 
 
Issued by: Elizabeth B. Dooley, CPPO, CPPB, Procurement Lead Buyer 
 
Subject: Addendum 1, RFP 21-003, Technology Master Plan 
 
The purpose of this addendum is to address questions submitted in response to the subject RFP. 
 
Section I: Questions & Answers 
 
Questions  
  

# Question Response 
1 Who received the RFP and possibly the 

attendee list from this afternoon? 
We do not have a specific list to provide. 

2 What is the budget allocated for the 
Technology Master Plan? 

We have sufficient funds to cover any contract 
award which may result from this RFP. 

3 How many FTEs are within the 
Technology department? 

There are 50 total FTEs in the Technology 
division:  Director, Information Technology – 28, 
Enterprise Systems – 21.  The Information 
Technology number includes 13 
Instrumentation and System Controls staff. 

4 Your RFP mentions an S/4 technology 
upgrade earlier in this year.  However, 
there is an SAP Cloud Platform 
consideration for Q4.  Could you 
describe the difference in these projects 
and their rationale? 

The in-flight project to migrate from ECC to S4 is 
considered technical only in nature with only 
the required configuration changes in scope.  
The SAP Cloud Platform subscription was 
initiated to provide access to development tools 
with the anticipation of Fiori development.  The 
initial use cases for Fiori are focused on 
dashboards and user access to data. 

5 Could you provide an architectural 
diagram of all current technology 
systems and their high-level interaction? 

This information will be provided to the selected 
vendor. 



6 Are the SCADA operating systems in 
scope for the Technology Master Plan, or 
just the process monitoring 
(Wonderware) solution? 

The SCADA Operating systems are not in scope.  

7 What is the growth potential for the 
listed number of users? 

We expect the number of users for the various 
applications to remain relatively static.  The 
exception is with the Mirata digital forms.  The 
number of users will begin as 25 and has growth 
potential of 200 as forms are developed for new 
user groups. 

8 Is the current network suitable to 
support the current bandwidth? 

Yes. 

9 What are the estimated growth 
requirements for bandwidth? 

None. 

10 What is the estimated new number of 
locations that will need to be supported? 

None.  

11 What is the estimated growth of 
logs/logging requirements? 

This information will be provided to the selected 
vendor. 

12 Are all of the listed applications 
monitored internally and/or by third 
party entity? 

 
Fairfax Water uses both internal and external 
resources to monitor its applications.  

13 Are there any current or planned 
compliance requirements that need to 
be considered? 

No. 

14 Are there any plans for vendor to utilize 
any type of automated tools to validate 
any processes, applications, data 
integrity, connectivity, security, or 
infrastructure? 

We have some projects in flight related to this, 
but we are open to discussion during the 
assessment.  

15 Did not find any references in RFP 
referring to any backup systems, 
continuity of operations (COOP) or 
recovery. Would these areas be included 
as part of assessment and deliverables? 

No.  

16 As a strategy and selection consultancy, 
if we participate as the Prime, would we 
be prohibited from working with Fairfax 
Water in providing software/SI selection 
services for any software engagements 
associated with the TMP? 

Yes. 

17 Will the Prime that is selected, be 
allowed to be a sub to another Prime for 
additional future work? 

No. 



18 How frequently does the Technology 
Governance Group meet? 

Monthly. 

19 Is there a deadline or a milestone trigger 
that the Technology Master Plan needs 
to be in place by? 

No, there is no deadline.  However, the 
expected timing of this project may allow for 
the inclusion of one or more resultant projects 
in 2022. 

20 Is there a target budget for the entire 
Technology Plan program (meaning the 
outcome of the plan)? Or will the 
selected consultant work with FW to 
create the budget in the final plan? 

The selected consultant will work with FW to 
create the budget for each project/initiative in 
the final plan. 

21 Should there be a high-level business 
case that results from the Technology 
Master Plan or would that be the next 
step? 

The Technology Master Plan should include:  
expected benefits (qualitative and quantitative), 
relationship to vision, and high-level cost 
estimates for each project and initiative. 

22 Are you deploying the Fiori apps along 
with S4 Hana or is that a part of this 
effort? 

The deployment of Fiori apps is not part of the 
project to migrate from ECC to S4.  The 
Technology Master Plan may influence the 
scope and timing of Fiori app development.  The 
initial plans are to improve end user access to 
data. 

23 When will FW be ready to start with this 
effort? Is it expected to start upon 
contract commencement? 
 

FW will be ready to start upon contract 
commencement. 

24 Do you have formal master data 
governance? 
 

Yes, but we know there are areas that need 
improvement. 

25 Does FW have any additional software, 
infrastructure, and applications 
upgrades that are committed to or 
considering soon? 
 

No.  

26 Is cyber security improvement in scope? 
 

No.  

27 Is business continuity and disaster 
recovery improvement in scope? 
 

No.  

28 Are MS Office systems in scope?  Open to discussion with the selected vendor. 
29 Approximately how many staff will be 

involved in interviews? 
Fairfax Water aspires to a high-level of 
employee engagement with this effort, but the 
number of staff involved in interviews may be 



equally driven by the project approach of the 
selected vendor. 

30 Could FW please confirm how many 
departments (outside of IT) do you 
anticipate being interviewed as part of 
this assessment?  Is there an expectation 
to interview any outside stakeholders 
(FW vendors, customers, etc.)? 

The number of departments interviewed will be 
dependent upon the project approach of the 
selected vendor.  Fairfax Water will work 
collaboratively with the selected vendor to 
facilitate the appropriate level of access to any 
stakeholder.   

31 Will FW require vulnerability scanning or 
penetration testing as part of the 
technology assessment portion of the 
scope? 

No.  

32 Is the IT department fully staffed at this 
time? 

No. 

33 Are you willing to share this project’s 
budget?  If so, what is the budget for this 
project? 

We have sufficient funds to cover any contract 
award which may result from this RFP. 

34 Does Fairfax Water expect the selected 
consultant to perform an in-depth 
analysis of the use of each business 
application listed in section 1.2.1 (e.g. 
LIMS, WIMS, Wonderware Historian) or 
is it sufficient to perform a high-level 
assessment to determine if the business 
application is meeting its users’ needs? 

It is sufficient to perform a high-level 
assessment to determine if the business 
application is meeting its users’ needs. 

35 In section 4.6.4 – Prior Experience the 
RFP requests “summaries of completed 
TMPS completed within the last five (5) 
years.”  Does that refer to a written 
summary of the project, the TMP table 
of contents, a complete copy of the 
TMP, or something else? 

Written summaries of completed TMPs should 
be provided. 

36 In section 4.6.5 Question Responses, 
question 1 asks for “experience with 
projects to either implement SAP and 
Esri integrated solutions or to select SAP 
and Esri integration projects.”  Would 
detailed ERP needs assessment projects 
for environments with SAP and Esri GIS 
fit this request? 

The question pertains to experience with either 
integrating SAP software with Esri software 
and/or selecting the solutions for data 
synchronization and integration. 

37 In section 4.5 of the RFP, it states that 
the superfluous use of paper (e.g. 
separate title sheets or chapter dividers) 

Please use paper or recycled dividers that are 
environmentally friendly. 



should be avoided as well as the use of 
plastic covers or dividers.  However, the 
RFP also states that numbered tabs and 
dividers for each section listed are 
required.  Could you please clarify? 

38 In section 4.5, there is information 
around use of recycled-content or tree-
free paper and a request that other 
materials (cover or binders) be made 
from recycled materials.  Would FW 
consider electronic submission of 
proposals since this would be the most 
“tree-free” option? 

FW does not currently have the technology to 
consider ‘electronic’ submission of bids or 
proposals.  

39 In section 4.3 it states “an electronic 
copy of the proposal on a SharePoint site 
which can be accessed by FW, shall be 
submitted by hand in a sealed 
envelope…”  Are you looking for a thumb 
drive or a link to a SharePoint site in a 
sealed envelope? 

Adjusted to read as follows: 
An electronic copy of the proposal on a 
SharePoint site which can be accessed by FW, 
shall be submitted by email to the Procurement 
Department contact at the time of Proposal 
submittal. 

40 Given the COVID-19 restrictions, will you 
permit remote meeting access?  If so, 
are they any constraints we should be 
aware of? 

Remote meetings are permitted.  FW is 
optimistic that health and safety risk factors of 
COVID-19 will have significantly diminished by 
project commencement, enabling some of the 
meetings to be conducted locally.  FW utilizes 
MS Teams but allows other teleconferencing 
solutions to be used. 

 
No other changes have been made to the RFP.
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Acknowledgement of Receipt of Addendum # 1 

 
I certify that the information contained in the proposal submitted on behalf of the below named 
firm incorporates any and all changes to the original specification.  I further certify by my 
signature below, that I am fully authorized to acknowledge receipt of the above addendum and 
also bind the below named firm to the terms, conditions and specifications of the RFP and any 
changes thereto made by this addendum. 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED BY:  

 
 
 
 
FOR: __________________________________    ____________________ 

Company Name       Date 
 
 
 

__________________________________  
Signature of Authorized Agent    

 
 

 
__________________________________   

  Printed/typed name 
 
 

_________________________________ 
  Title 
 


